
 

 

  

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

City Council Chambers 

Monday, December 13, 2021 at 7:00 PM 

AGENDA 

Pre Sine Die 

Call to Order, Prayer, Pledge of Allegiance 

Adjustment and Approval of the Agenda — Items will only be added or removed with the approval of 

the Mayor and City Council. 

Special Presentations 

1. Recognition of Council Member - City Council will recognize Council Member, Alfred 

Carpenter for his many years of service to the City.  

Approval of Minutes  

2. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Regular Meeting Minutes of the 

November 8, 2021 meeting. 

3. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Work Session Meeting minutes 

of the November 30th, 2021 meeting. 

Gaston County Official Canvass 

4. Acceptance of Official Canvass - City Council will consider accepting the official canvass of 

the Tuesday, November 2nd, 2021 election.  

The votes are as follows: 

Kay McCathen, Ward 2 (231 votes) 

Brent Guffey, Ward 5 (220 votes) 

Donnie Griffin, Ward 6 (263 votes)  

Business Items 

5. Public Hearing- Rezoning Request: City Council will hold a public hearing regarding a 

rezoning request of property located at tax parcels #220086, #151795, and a portion of parcel 

#305559 from Rural (R) and I-2 (Gaston Co. Zoning Jurisdiction) to Urban Residential (UR).  

1



6. Ordinance for Zoning Map Amendment: City Council will consider approving a rezoning 

request for property located at tax parcels #220086, #151795, and a portion of parcel #305559 

from Rural (R) and I-2 (Gaston Co. Zoning Jurisdiction) to Urban Residential (UR).  

7. Public Hearing- Junk Vehicles & Noise Ordinance: City Council will hold a public hearing 

regarding the Junk Vehicle and Noise Ordinance revisions.  

8. Ordinance Adopting Text Amendments - City Council will consider adopting ordinances to 

amend the following: Chapter 92, Junk Vehicles and Chapter 94, Noise Regulations of the Code 

of Ordinances.  

9. Ordinance Adopting Text Amendments - City Council will consider adopting ordinances to 

amend several sections of the Land Development Code (LDC): Section 3.2.B Accessory 

Structures, 3.3.F Garages and Carports, and Section 10.1 General Definitions. 

10. Ordinance for Zoning Map Amendment - 801 W. Highway 161: City Council will consider 

approving a zoning map amendment regarding property at 801 W. Highway 161 tax parcels 

#121181. 

Council General Discussion — This is an opportunity for the Mayor and City Council to ask questions 

for clarification, provide information to staff, request staff to report back, or place a matter on a future 

agenda. 

Adjournment Sine Die of the 2019-2021 Council Session.  

2



 

 

  

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

City Council Chambers 

Monday, November 8, 2021 at 7:00 PM 

MINUTES 
Members Present  

Mayor, Becky S. Smith, Council Members: Alfred Carpenter, Kay McCathen, Brenda Boyd, Dan Boling, 

Joe Will, and Donnie Griffin were all present. City Manager, James Inman and City Attorney, Dan O’Shea 

were present as well. 

Call to Order, Prayer, Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Smith called the meeting to order. Mt. Pleasant Baptist Church Pastor, Thurman Clark led the 

audience in prayer. Mayor Smith invited all Veterans present to lead the audience in the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

Adjustment and Approval of the Agenda  

By motion of Alfred Carpenter and unanimous vote, the November agenda was approved with no revisions. 

 

Request to Speak/Opportunity for Public Comment  
Mayor Smith opened the floor for public comment. The following individuals came forth: 

 

- Edgar Holbrook of 706 E. Iowa – Mr. Holbrook spoke about his concern at the Bessemer City 

Memorial Cemetery. Currently it is posted that the City cleans the cemetery in February, June, and 

September. However, Mr. Holbrook does not believe that the City is cleaning up during these times. 

Mayor Smith invited Mr. Holbrook to set up a meeting with the City Manager.  

- Melissa Toye of 109 N. F St. – Mrs. Toye spoke to Council regarding communication with her Ward 

2 representative. Mrs. Toye has made several attempts via email to speak with her Ward 2 

representative. Mayor Smith informed Mrs. Toye that this is time is designated for Council to hear 

comments. Council will address her concerns after advisement.  

- Shilo Canipe of 801 W Highway 161- Mr. Canipe addressed Council regarding his concern with the 

current Land  

Consent Agenda  

The following items on the Consent Agenda were unanimously approved by motion of Dan Boling: 

1. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Regular Meeting Minutes of the 

October 11, 2021 meeting.  

2. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Work Session Meeting Minutes 

of the October 26, 2021 meeting.   

3

Item 2.



3. Gaston County's 175th Anniversary Proclamation: City Council will consider adopting a 

proclamation recognizing Gaston County's 175th anniversary on December 21, 2021.   

 

Establish Public Hearing:  
By motion of Donnie Griffin and unanimous vote, a public hearing regarding junk vehicle and noise 

ordinance at the Monday, December 13, 2021 at 7:00PM in Council Chambers.  

 

Establish Public Hearing: 
By motion of Dan Boling and unanimous vote, a public hearing regarding a request to the Zoning Map to 

rezone Tax Parcel #220086, #151795, and Portion of Parcel #220086, 3200 Bessemer City Hwy, from Rural 

(R) and I-2 (Gaston Co. Zoning Jurisdiction) to Urban Residential (UR) will be held on Monday, December 

13, 2021 at 7:00 PM in Council Chambers.  

 

 

Public Hearing – 801 W. Highway 161: 

By motion of Donnie Griffin and unanimous vote, the public hearing was opened at 7: 16 PM.  

 

Mayor Smith asked if there was anyone to speak in favor of the rezoning request. The following individual 

came forward:  

 

Michael Meeks of 812 W. Virginia Avenue spoke in favor of the rezoning, as the property would result in 

a new store. The community used to have one several years ago.  

 

Melissa Toye of 109 N. F St spoke in favor of the store and her concerns regarding road infrastructure. Mrs. 

Toye also mentioned that the community would need sidewalks for easy access.  

 

Mayor Smith asked if there was anyone to speak in opposition of the rezoning request. The following 

individual came forth: 

 

Dwayne Fortenberry of 804 W. Georgia Avenue spoke in opposition of the rezoning request as he was 

concerned with the unintended consequences a corner store can have.  

 

By motion of Alfred Carpenter and unanimous vote, the public hearing was closed at 7:39 PM.  

 

Ordinance for Zoning Map Amendment - 801 W. Hwy 161:  

Code Enforcement Officer, Nathan Hester addressed Council regarding a rezoning request received from 

Shilo Canipe for his property located at 801 W. Highway 161. Mr. Canipe wishes to apply for a change of 

use to establish a convenience store. This is currently not allowed under the zoning. The Planning Board 

recommended to rezone the parcel to highway commercial. Discussion ensued amongst City Staff and  

Council regarding a Special Use Permit.  

 

By general consensus, Council instructed City Manager, James  Inman to reach out to Mr. Canipe to amend 

his application. 

 

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board Members 

Light discussion was held regarding the applications received to serve on the Parks & Recreation Advisory 

Board. By motion of Joe Will and unanimous vote, Council appointed the following applicants and terms:  

 

 

4

Item 2.



Board Member Recommendation Office Term Term in Years 

Huston R. Sheppard YES  November 2021- 
June 2024 

2 

Andrew Baxter YES Chair November 2021- 
June 2025 

3 

Jean C. Floyd YES  November 2021- 
June 2023 

1 

Rev. Matt Mitchell YES  November 2021- 
June 2023 

1 

Stephanie Gee YES  November 2021- 
June 2024 

2 

Erika Nixon YES  November 2021- 
June 2023 

1 

Andrew Herring YES Vice-Chair November 2021- 
June 2024 

2 

 

Resolution - USDA Amendment to Letter of Conditions: 

Nick Lattanzi, USDA Area Specialist addressed Council regarding an amendment to the letter of conditions 

for the Stinger Park and Water Treatment Plant projects. A resolution was needed to raise a portion of the 

cost of the project. The amount was raised by $133,000.00.  

 

By motion of Donnie Griffin and unanimous vote, the resolution amending the USDA letter of conditions 

by $133,000.00 was approved.  

 

Resolution Adopting Text Amendments  

Code Enforcement Officer, Nathan Hester addressed Council regarding several Land Development Code 

(LDC) amendments: Section 3.2.B Accessory Structures, 3.3.F Garages and Carports, and Section 10.1 

General Definitions. 

 

Light discussion ensued between Council and City Staff.  

 

By motion of Alfred Carpenter, the text amendments where tabled for 30 days. 

 

Demolition Ordinance- 107 W. Washington Ave 

Code Enforcement Officer, Nathan Hester addressed Council regarding a demolition ordinance for 

property located at 107 W. Washington Avenue.  

 

By motion of Joe Will and unanimous vote, the ordinance regarding the demolition of property located at 

107 W. Washington Avenue was approved.   

 

Demolition Ordinance- 113 W. Washington Ave 

Code Enforcement Officer, Nathan Hester addressed Council regarding a demolition ordinance for 

property located at 113 W. Washington Avenue. This house is owned by the City. The City wishes to 

demolish the house.  

 

By motion of Joe Will and unanimous vote, the ordinance regarding the demolition of property located at 

113 W. Washington Avenue was approved.  

 

 

 

5

Item 2.



Demolition Ordinance- 402 N. 10th Street 

Code Enforcement Officer, Nathan Hester addressed Council regarding a demolition ordinance for 

property located at 402 N. 10th Street. This spring a minimum housing case and investigation began. 

Occupants were asked to clean junk and debris. However, the issues were not addressed. There is 

structural and water damage to the roof.  

 

By motion of Joe Will and unanimous vote, the ordinance regarding the demolition of property located at 

402 N. 10th Street was approved.   

 

Demolition Ordinance- 609 S. 11th Street 

Code Enforcement Officer, Nathan Hester addressed Council regarding a demolition ordinance for 

property located at 609 S. 11th Street. Since October 2019, said property has had a minimum housing 

case. Occupants have had multiple junk vehicles, nuisance, and junk and debris on the property. 

 

By motion of Joe Will and unanimous vote, the ordinance regarding the demolition of property located at 

609 S. 11th Street was approved.   

  

City Manager's Report 

By general consensus the following items were tabled for the next Regular Meeting:  

 Budget Amendment: Council will consider adopting a budget amendment. 

 Capital Project Ordinance: City Council will consider approving a capital project amendment 

regarding the sale of general fund property. 

 

Council General Discussion  

Mayor Smith opened the floor for Council general discussion. Council member, Brenda Boyd 

commended the Council for their hard work. Council member, Alfred Carpenter, commended Council 

Elect- Brent Guffey on being elected. Mr. Carpenter, further commended the Council, City Manager, City 

Staff, Fire and Police Departments. Council member, Donnie Griffin inquired about the flagpoles at the 

Vantine Cemetery and the Stinger Park project. Mr. Griffin commended the Police Chief and Department 

for being the 22nd Safest City.  

 

Closed Session 

By motion of Dan Boling and unanimous vote, City Council entered Closed Session to consult with the 

City Attorney in accordance with NCGS 143-318.11(3) at 8:11 PM.  

 

By motion of Dan Boling and unanimous vote, City Council came out of Closed Session at 8:19 PM. No 

action was taken.  

 

Settlement Agreement 
By motion of Alfred Carpenter and unanimous vote, the attorney is authorized to enter a settlement 

agreement.  

 

Adjourn 

Being no further business to come before the board, by motion of Alfred and unanimous vote, the meeting 

was adjourned at 8:20 PM. 

 

 

_______________________                                                   ______________________________ 

   Becky S. Smith, Mayor                                   Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 

6

Item 2.



 

7

Item 2.



 

 

  

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

City Council Chambers 

Tuesday, November 30, 2021 at 3:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Call to Order 

Mayor Becky S. Smith called the meeting to order.  

 

Members Present  

Mayor, Becky S. Smith, Council Members: Kay McCathen, Brenda Boyd, Dan Boling, Joe Will, and 

Donnie Griffin were all present. City Manager, James Inman was present as well. Council Member, Alfred 

Carpenter was absent.  

 

Winn Development Presentation 

Amy Mikel, Vice President and Laura Mayfield, Senior Project Director of Winn Development addressed 

Council regarding the Osage Mill Redevelopment Project. Winn has recently acquired the Osage Mill 

property. Mikel, Mayfield, and Don Tice, Lead Deveoper updated Council on the project and details about 

construction.  

 

Resolution Authorizing the City of Bessemer City to Request Termination/Withdrawal of a North 

Carolina Parks & Recreation Trust Fund Grant 

City Manager, James Inman addressed Council about the NC Parks & Recreation Trust Fund Grant. The 

City received these grant funds several years ago. Thus, the NC Parks & Recreation Trust Fund needed to 

close out the project. Said resolution is needed to allow the City to close out the project, and secure the 

grant funds.  

 

By motion of Kay McCathen and unanimous vote, the resolution authorizing the City to request termination 

and withdrawal of a North Carolina Parks & Recreation Trust Fund Grant.  

 

Department Head Reports 

Bessemer City department heads gave reports on their department’s status:  

 

Josh Ross, Director of Administration- Mr. Ross addressed Council regarding the Tree Lighting and the 

Business Accelerate program. The Tree Lighting service on Saturday, November 20th went really well. 

Several years ago, staff developed a business accelerator program to assist with Economic Development in 

downtown Bessemer City. Funds to establish the program was included in the State’s budget this year.  

 

JoD Franklin, Parks and Recreation Director- Mr. Franklin addressed Council regarding the Christmas 

Parade, the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board, and Employment in the Parks & Recreation Department. 

Franklin shared the Parade detail and line up for Council. The Grand Marshal is Bruce W. Dixon, a 

Bessemer City native and 1893 Alumni. The Parks & Recreation Advisory Board will meet on Tuesday, 

8

Item 3.



December 14th at 6:00 PM. There are currently two openings in the Department. City Staff is interviewing 

next week for the two positions, Parks & Recreation Specialist and Grounds & Facilities.  

 

Charlie Harbin, Fire Chief- Mr. Harbin addressed Council regarding the annual BBQ sale and general Fire 

Department business. The BBQ went well, the department sold more plates than expected. The floors inside 

the Fire Department are being re-done.  

 

Jamie Ramsey, Assistant City Manager- Mr. Ramsey addressed Council regarding the paving project. The 

Paving project is 90% done. Once all of the paving is done, striping of the streets will begin.   

 

Tom Ellis, Police Chief- Mr. Ellis addressed Council regarding department position transitions and Captain 

Harps retirement party. Captain Brent Harp will be retiring at the end of December 2021. His retirement 

party will be on Wednesday, December 15th. Detective James will be moving to Patrol, Officer Henderson 

will be moving to Detective, and Captain Long to Operations.  

 

Diane Jenkins, Finance Director – Ms. Jenkins addressed Council regarding the annual audit and general 

Finance and Customer Service department progress. The audit was submitted and the auditors will be 

presenting to City Council at a Council meeting.  

 

Nathan Hester, City Planner & Code Enforcement – Mr. Hester addressed Council regarding an upcoming 

public hearing and upcoming Planning & Zoning business.  

 

City Manager's Report 

Mr. Inman informed Council on the progress of Stinger Park, the Christmas Party, annual Planning Retreat, 

Economic Development Breakfast Meeting and the general City affairs.  

 

Council General Discussion 

Mayor Smith opened the floor for Council general discussion. There was none.  

Adjourn 

Being no further business to come before the board, the meeting was adjourned at 4:32 PM by motion of 

Brenda Boyd and unanimous vote. 

 

_______________________                                                  ______________________________ 

   Becky S. Smith, Mayor                 Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 

9

Item 3.



10

Item 4.



11

Item 4.



12

Item 4.



13

Item 4.



14

Item 4.



15

Item 4.



16

Item 4.



17

Item 4.



18

Item 4.



19

Item 4.



20

Item 4.



21

Item 4.



22

Item 4.



23

Item 4.



24

Item 4.



25

Item 4.



26

Item 4.



27

Item 4.



28

Item 4.



29

Item 4.



30

Item 4.



31

Item 4.



32

Item 4.



33

Item 4.



34

Item 4.



35

Item 4.



36

Item 4.



37

Item 4.



38

Item 4.



39

Item 4.



 

City of Bessemer City, North Carolina 

Text Amendment/Rezoning Staff Report 

Planning Board Recommendation November 1, 2021 

 

Applicant:  Lennar Corporation 

 

Request: 
 

General Rezoning application 03-2021 from Lennar Corporation to rezone a portion of Tax 

Parcel Number 305559, Tax Parcel Number’s 151795 and 220086 to accommodate the 

development of a single family residential community. 

 

Background Information: 

 

Tax Parcel Number 220086 is currently zoned Rural (R), is within the City of Bessemer City’s 

extra territorial jurisdiction and is a vacant parcel. The applicant is requesting a zoning map 

amendment to rezone the parcel to Urban Residential (UR) to accommodate the development of a 

single family residential community.  

Tax Parcel Number 305559 is currently zoned (I-2), is within the Gaston County Zoning 

Jurisdiction, and is a vacant parcel. The applicant is requesting a zoning map amendment to rezone 

the parcel to Urban Residential to accommodate the development of a single family residential 

community. The rezoning of this parcel is contingent upon annexation from Gaston County 

Jurisdiction to City of Bessemer City.  

Urban Residential Dimensional Standards: 

Minimum Lot Area: 6,000 Square Feet 

Minimum Lot Width: 50 Feet 

Minimum Front Setback: 20 Feet 

40

Item 6.



Minimum Side Setback: 6 Feet 

Minimum Rear Setback: 30 Feet 

Minimum Corner Setback: 20 Feet 

Maximum Building Height: 45 Feet 

 

Proposal: The applicants have submitted a General Rezoning application on October 18, 2021 

proposing to develop a single family residential community on the proposed site. A summary of 

the proposal is as follows: 

 

Site Development Data: 

Acreage: 95.33 

Tax Parcels: (Portion of) 305559, 220086 

Existing Zoning: (R) Rural (Bessemer City), I-2 (Gaston County Jurisdiction) 

Proposed Zoning: Urban Residential (UR) 

Existing Uses: Vacant 

Proposed Uses: Single-Family 

Lots: +/- 200 (50’ x 120’) 

Maximum Building Height: 45’ (Per Bessemer City Code) 

Minimum Building Height: 20’ (Per Bessemer City Code) 

Parking: 2 per Unit Minimum  

Open Space: 9.5 acres with approximately 3 acres as main amenity space with pool. Proposed 

greenway.  

Roads: The proposal of both sites involve the creation of right of ways within the communities 

that include streets, sidewalks on both sides, and green strips. All right of ways and streets will be 

dedicated to the city upon development completion. Primary ingress and egress from the site will 

be off of Costner School Rd. with a secondary access point of ingress and egress off of Arc St. 

There is a proposed future connection east of the development if future development were to 

become possible.  

 A five (5) foot wide sidewalk shall be constructed alongside all roadways, existing or 

proposed, as well as a six (6) foot green strip.  

Utilities – Water and Sewer: The applicant is proposing the development to be served by City of 

Bessemer City Water and Sewer services.  

 Public Works Director has indicated that there is City water and sewer availability for the 

site. 

 Applicants will pay the water, sewer tap fees, and system development fees. 

41

Item 6.



Stormwater Drainage: Drainage will be engineered according to the best management practices at 

the time of construction and will be handled through a curb and gutter system located within the 

proposed road right-of-way. The property is subject to adopted stormwater management 

guidelines. 

Open Space: Applicant proposes approximately 9.5 acres of open space with a community pool 

and proposed greenway.  

Land Use Buffer: The Preliminary Site Plan indicates there will be a six (6) foot greenstrip along 

all main roadways within the residential community. The greenstrip shall have Canopy, 

Understory, or a combination of both. Number of trees required to be determined at the time of 

permitting. There is a combination of 20 ft., 30 ft., and 40 ft. landscape/stream buffer’s proposed 

between around the perimeter of the development site.  

 

 

 

Staff Recommendation:  

 

Approve rezoning of development site to Urban Residential Conditional District 

with conditions to be worked out by the regular council meeting held on January 10, 

2022.  

 

Exhibits: 
 

1. Application packet submitted by Land Design on behalf of Applicant.  

2. Plan Consistency & Reasonableness Statement 

 

42

Item 6.



 
 
 
 
 

City of Bessemer City Application for Rezoning (Zoning Amendment) 
 
1. Applicant Name: ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Applicant Address: ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
3. Applicant City: _______________________ State: _______ Zip Code: ____________ 
 
4. Applicant Telephone: Home:________________ Work:_________________ 
 
5. Name and address of owner (if different from applicant): ______________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6. Location of Subject Property: ____________________________________________________________ 
            (a)  Street address:_________________________________________________________________ 
            (b)  Gaston County P.I.N. ___________________________________________________________ 
 
7. Area of Subject Property (acres or square feet): ______________________________________________ 
 
8. Zoning Classification: Current: _______________________ Proposed: __________________________ 
 
9. Existing Land Use: ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Surrounding Land Use: North: ________________________ South: ____________________________ 
                                               East: ________________________ West: ____________________________ 
 
11. Reason(s) for Requesting a Rezoning (Zoning 
Amendment):___________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Required Attachments/Submittals 
Typed metes and bounds description of the property (or portion of property to be rezoned. A property deed 
is sufficient, provided that the deed describes only the property requested for rezoning. 
 
 
 

Certification 
I hereby acknowledge and say that the information contained herein and herewith is true and that this 
application shall not be scheduled for official consideration until all of the required contents are submitted 
in proper form to the City of Bessemer City Planning Department. It is understood by the undersigned that 
while this application will be carefully reviewed and considered, the burden of proving the need for the 
proposed amendment rests with the applicant. 
 
Signature of Applicant: ___________________________________________ Date: __________________ 
 
Staff Use Only: 
Fee: $_________ Received by: _________________________ Date: _________________ 

The application fee is nonrefundable 

Mark Henninger

6701 Carmel Road Ste 425

Charlotte NC 28226

704.309.1425

3200 Bessemer City Road and 143 Bobbie Lane
305559 & 220086

+/- 95.33 AC

R & I-2 UR

Vacant

NR & R I-2
R-1 & RS-12 NR, R & BC

Single Family Proposed Use

Mark Henninger Digitally signed by Mark Henninger 
Date: 2021.10.18 23:47:20 -04'00' 10/18/2021

Nathan Hester 10/18/2021

43

Item 6.



 
 

Staff Use Only: 
 

Scheduled for Planning and Zoning Commission consideration: 
 
Date: _____________________ Time: ____________ Location: __________________________ 
 
Date Advertised, written notice(s) sent, and property posted: ______________________________ 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation: ___ Approved ___ Denied 
 
If denied, was an appeal filed? ______________________________________________________ 
 
 
Scheduled for City Council consideration: 
 
Date: ______________________ Time: ____________ Location: __________________________ 
 
Dates advertised: (a) first notice: ____________ (b) second notice: ___________ 
 
City Council recommendation: ___ Approved ___Denied 
 
Date applicant notified of City Council action: _____________________________ 
 
Comments: ______________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

November 1, 2021 6:00 p.m. 132 W. Virginia Ave. Bessemer City, NC 28016

N/A

December 13, 2021 7:00 p.m. 132 W. Virginia Ave. Bessemer City, NC 28016

✔

44

Item 6.



 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY 

OF BESSEMER CITY.  

 

WHEREAS, after proper notification a Public Hearing was held before the Bessemer City Council on December 

13th, 2021 to consider a proposed amendment to the City of Bessemer City Zoning Map. On November 1st, 

2021 the Bessemer City Planning Board voted to recommend      the City Council approve the proposed zoning map 

amendment. 

 

WHEREAS, after a vote, the City Council of Bessemer City approved a zoning map change 

to the    Official City of Bessemer City Zoning Map reflected in application ZA-03-2021. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, that the Official 

City of Bessemer City Zoning Map is amended to reflect the adopted changes as written below. 

 
 Tax Parcel #220086 is rezoned from Rural (R) to Urban Residential (UR). 

 Tax Parcel #151795 is rezoned from Rural (R) to Urban Residential (UR). 

 Portion of Tax Parcel #305559 from Industrial 2 (I-2) to Urban Residential (UR).  

 

 

Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, 

North Carolina. 
 

Adopted by City Council this 13th Day of December, 2021. 
 

 

 

Becky S. Smith, Mayor 
 

Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COBC-GOVBOD-2021-2022 O 23 

 
45

Item 6.



COSTNER
SCHOOL ROAD

---

BESSEMER CITY, NC

REZONING #2021-XXX

1021242

TECHNICAL DATA SHEET

N/A

XX
XX
XX

RZ-1
10/19/2021 10:13 AM   DAPHNE BRICE   Z:\TEMPLATES\SHEETS\CD SHEETS\LA\SHEET-24X36.DWT

0

            1"=200'

100' 200' 400'

KEY MAP

SEAL

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

LANDDESIGN PROJ.#

SCALE

PROJECT

NORTH

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

REVISION / ISSUANCE

ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 24" X 36"

VERT:
HORZ:

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
DESIGNED BY:

223 NORTH GRAHAM STREET
CHARLOTTE, NC 28202

704.333.0325
WWW.LANDDESIGN.COM

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

10/18/2021 4:45 PM   CASSIE SCHILLING   N:\_2021\1021275\CAD\DOCUMENTATION\REZONING\1021275_ REZONING.DWG

0 10.19.2021INITIAL ZONING
SUBMITTAL

NTS
VICINITY  MAP

SITE DEVELOPMENT DATA

ACREAGE: ± 95.33 ACRES

TAX PARCEL #(S): (PORTION OF) 305559, 220086

EXISTING ZONING: R (BESSEMER CITY), I-2 (GASTON
COUNTY JURISDICTION)

PROPOSED ZONING: UR

EXISTING USES: VACANT

PROPOSED USES: SINGLE-FAMILY

LOTS: ± 200 (50' X 120')

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 45' (PER BESSEMER CITY
CODE)

PARKING: 2 PER UNIT MINIMUM

1

2

21

PID: 152067
TBCGA INVESTMENTS LLC
DB 4957 PG 048
107 DAISY LEE LN
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: BC

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

22

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

14

13

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

EAST MAINE AVE.

PID: 152057
SKY KING INC
DB 2725 PG 0237
N/A
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: BC

PID: 151781
STOCKTON WILLIAM M
STOCKTON JO ANN
DB 2559 PG 0108
482 COSTNER SCHOOL RD.
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: R

PID: 151782
BAXTER MAX D BAXTER MARY C
DB 2543 PG 0641
500 COSTNER SCHOOL RD.
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: R

PID: 220086
BBB&C ENTERPRISES LLC

DB 4570 PG 0418
EX. ZONING: R

USE: RESIDENTIAL

PID: 305559
BBB&C ENTERPRISES LLC

DB 4250 PG 0385
EX. ZONING: I-2

USE: INDUSTRIAL

PID: 151780
GOIN JANET G GUFFEY
EDWARD BRENT
DB 5079 PG 1793
N/A.
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: NR

PID: 151775
CHARLES TIMOTHY
CHARLES TAMMY GUFFEY
DB 4449 PG 1898
540 COSTNER SCHOOL ROAD
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: NR

PID: 151776
WILSON JOHN
DB 4590 PG 0290
606 COSTNER SCHOOL ROAD
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: NR

PID: 151267
MACFARLANE CASEY S
MACFARLANE TERESA C
DB 4340 PG 2038
624 COSTNER SCHOOL ROAD
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: NR

PID: 151266
ODELL FLOYD D
DB 5111 PG 1486
632 COSTNER SCHOOL ROAD
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: NR

PID: 151353
WALLACE WALTER K
WALLACE DENISE B
DB 4064 PG 0264
N/A
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: NR

PID: 151354
WALLACE WALTER K
WALLACE DENISE B
DB 4064 PG 0264
N/A
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: NR

PID: 151355
MERRILL WILLIAM R JR
DB 4271 PG 0923
208 COSTNER SCHOOL RD.
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: NR

PID: 151786
LUTZ JEFFREY A
DB 4500 PG 0053
208 ARC STREET
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: NR

PID: 202266
COSTNER C JACKSON JR &
COSTNER TRACY D
DB 4961 PG 0999
N/A
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: R

PID: 151844
WRIGHT MARY RUTH C
WILSON CLAUDETTE W
DB 5012 PG 0076
N/A
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: R-1

PID: 151811
HAMRICK LAWRENCE REID II
DB 5187 PG 0278
425 HOLLAND MEMORIAL CHURCH RD
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: R-1

PID: 151817
HAMRICK LAWRENCE REID II
DB 5187 PG 0278
419 HOLLAND MEMORIAL ROAD
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: R-1

PID: 151808
ESPINOZA JOSE ALFREDO LAYNEZ
DB 5069 PG 2444
501 CAPPS DRIVE
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: R-1

PID: 151806
COSTNER CONSTANCE RAYNOR
DB 008E PG 0048
502 CAPPS DRIVE
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: RS-12

PID: 151805
HUGHES NANCY C
DB 4640 PG 2420
N/A
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: RS-12

PID: 151800
PAYNE JANICE PROCTOR
DB 008E PG 0048
N/A
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: RS-12

PID: 305559
BBB&C ENTERPRISES LLC
DB 4250 PG 0385
3200 BESSEMER CITY RD.
BESSEMER CITY, NC 28016
EX. ZONING: I-2

CO
ST

NE
R 

SC
HO

O
L 

RD
.

BESSEMER CITY RD

PU
ET

TS
 C

HA
PE

L 
RD

. LO
NG C

REEK

SITE

EXISTING FLOODPLAIN

ARC STREET

BEST STREET

CO
ST

NE
R 

SC
HO

O
L 

RO
AD

EX. PERENNIAL STREAM
EXISTING FLOODPLAIN

JA
CK 

CIR
CLE

COSTNER DRIVE

TODD DRIVE

JA
CK

SO
N 

CO
UR

T

INTERMITTENT STREAM

INTERMITTENT STREAM

ADJACENT WETLANDS

INTERMITTENT STREAM

NON-JURISDICTIONAL SWALE

WETLAND

INTERMITTENT STREAM

WETLAND

MARGINAL STREAM

INTERMITTENT STREAM

PERENNIAL STREAM

46

Item 6.



COSTNER
SCHOOL ROAD

---

BESSEMER CITY, NC

REZONING #2021-XXX

1021242

SCHEMATIC SITE PLAN

N/A

XX
XX
XX

RZ-2
10/19/2021 10:13 AM   DAPHNE BRICE   Z:\TEMPLATES\SHEETS\CD SHEETS\LA\SHEET-24X36.DWT

0

            1"=200'

100' 200' 400'

KEY MAP

SEAL

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

LANDDESIGN PROJ.#

SCALE

PROJECT

NORTH

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

REVISION / ISSUANCE

ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 24" X 36"

VERT:
HORZ:

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
DESIGNED BY:

223 NORTH GRAHAM STREET
CHARLOTTE, NC 28202

704.333.0325
WWW.LANDDESIGN.COM

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

10/18/2021 4:45 PM   CASSIE SCHILLING   N:\_2021\1021275\CAD\DOCUMENTATION\REZONING\1021275_ REZONING.DWG

0 10.19.2021INITIAL ZONING
SUBMITTAL

LEGEND

PROPERTY LINE

PERENNIAL STREAM

INTERMITTENT STREAM

MARGINAL INTERMITTENT
STREAM

NON JURISDICTIONAL
SWALE

POTENTIAL GREENWAY

20' (C1) BUFFER

40' (B1) BUFFER

50' (A1) BUFFER

EX. WETLANDS

EX. FLOODPLAIN

OPEN SPACE AREA

PROPOSED STORMWATER
FACILITY

EXISTING FLOODPLAIN

ACCESS

ARC STREET

BEST STREET

CO
ST

NE
R 

SC
HO

O
L 

RO
AD

EX. PERENNIAL STREAM

BMP

OPEN SPACE TYP.

20' BUFFER

BMP

BMP

BMP

EXISTING FLOODPLAIN

JA
CK 

CIR
CLE

COSTNER DRIVE

COSTNER SCHOOL ROAD

TODD DRIVE

JA
CK

SO
N 

CO
UR

T

INTERMITTENT STREAM

INTERMITTENT STREAM

ADJACENT WETLANDS

INTERMITTENT STREAM

NON-JURISDICTIONAL SWALE

WETLAND

INTERMITTENT STREAM

WETLAND

MARGINAL STREAM

INTERMITTENT STREAM

PERENNIAL STREAM

40' BUFFER

20' BUFFER

20' BUFFER
40' BUFFER

50' BUFFER

40' BUFFER

20' BUFFER

20' BUFFER

PROPOSED AMENITY
SPACE +/- 3 AC

30' STREAM BUFFER

30' STREAM BUFFER

30' STREAM BUFFER

ACCESS

ACCESS

47

Item 6.



COSTNER
SCHOOL ROAD

---

BESSEMER CITY, NC

REZONING #2021-XXX

1021242

STREET NETWORK
CONNECTIVITY PLAN

N/A

XX
XX
XX

RZ-3
10/19/2021 10:13 AM   DAPHNE BRICE   Z:\TEMPLATES\SHEETS\CD SHEETS\LA\SHEET-24X36.DWT

0

            1"=200'

100' 200' 400'

KEY MAP

SEAL

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

LANDDESIGN PROJ.#

SCALE

PROJECT

NORTH

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

REVISION / ISSUANCE

ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 24" X 36"

VERT:
HORZ:

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
DESIGNED BY:

223 NORTH GRAHAM STREET
CHARLOTTE, NC 28202

704.333.0325
WWW.LANDDESIGN.COM

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

10/18/2021 4:45 PM   CASSIE SCHILLING   N:\_2021\1021275\CAD\DOCUMENTATION\REZONING\1021275_ REZONING.DWG

0 10.19.2021INITIAL ZONING
SUBMITTAL

LEGEND

PROPERTY LINE

PERENNIAL STREAM

INTERMITTENT STREAM

MARGINAL INTERMITTENT
STREAM

NON-JURIDICTIONAL
SWALE

POTENTIAL GREENWAY

STREET NETWORK

20' (C1) BUFFER

40' (B1) BUFFER

50' (A1) BUFFER

EX. WETLANDS

EX. FLOODPLAIN

OPEN SPACE AREA

PROPOSED STORMWATER
FACILITY

EXISTING FLOODPLAIN

ACCESS

ARC STREET

BEST STREET

CO
ST

NE
R 

SC
HO

O
L 

RO
AD

EX. PERENNIAL STREAM

OPEN SPACE TYP.

20' BUFFER

BMP

BMP

BMP

EXISTING FLOODPLAIN

JA
CK 

CIR
CLE

COSTNER DRIVE

COSTNER SCHOOL ROAD

TODD DRIVE

JA
CK

SO
N 

CO
UR

T

INTERMITTENT STREAM

INTERMITTENT STREAM

ADJACENT WETLANDS

INTERMITTENT STREAM

NON-JURISDICTIONAL SWALE

WETLAND

INTERMITTENT STREAM

WETLAND

MARGINAL STREAM

INTERMITTENT STREAM

PERENNIAL STREAM

40' BUFFER

20' BUFFER

20' BUFFER
40' BUFFER

50' BUFFER

40' BUFFER

20' BUFFER

20' BUFFER

BMP

PROPOSED AMENITY
SPACE  +/- 3 AC

30' STREAM BUFFER

30' STREAM BUFFER

30' STREAM BUFFER

ACCESS

ACCESS

POTENTIAL GREENWAY ALIGNMENT

48

Item 6.



S0
2°

 0
3'

 3
6.

9"
W

80
6.

59
'

N85° 45' 21.9"E
317.13'

N
01

° 5
1'

 4
0.

4"
E

13
5.

17
'

S89° 24' 28.6"E
458.93'

S0
1°

 5
5'

 4
0.

1"
E

34
4.

61
'

N87° 08' 22.9"E
624.60'

S2
1°

 5
3'

 2
3.

0"
W

63
9.

23
'

S68° 44' 22.5"E184.19'

S2
1°

 0
1'

 2
5.

5"
W

18
0.

97
'

N68° 46' 10.5"W
216.95'

S21° 12' 25.2"W
209.99'

S68° 48' 37.0"E
213.93'

S22° 01' 52.1"W
60.51'

S36° 24' 23.7"W
6.88'

S34° 24' 18.9"W
6.88'

N78° 16' 49.7"W
207.98'

N04° 33' 30.2"E
364.86'

N64° 01' 35.6"W

105.60'
S52° 32' 28.3"W
143.47'

N53° 10' 44.7"W

603.90'
N54° 20' 02.5"W
32.69'

N64° 02' 59.4"W
34.44'

N74° 07' 24.1"W

387.03'

COSTNER
SCHOOL ROAD

---

BESSEMER CITY, NC

REZONING #2021-XXX

1021242

ZONING BOUNDARY

N/A

XX
XX
XX

RZ-4
10/19/2021 10:13 AM   DAPHNE BRICE   Z:\TEMPLATES\SHEETS\CD SHEETS\LA\SHEET-24X36.DWT

0

            1"=200'

100' 200' 400'

KEY MAP

SEAL

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

LANDDESIGN PROJ.#

SCALE

PROJECT

NORTH

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

REVISION / ISSUANCE

ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 24" X 36"

VERT:
HORZ:

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
DESIGNED BY:

223 NORTH GRAHAM STREET
CHARLOTTE, NC 28202

704.333.0325
WWW.LANDDESIGN.COM

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

10/18/2021 4:45 PM   CASSIE SCHILLING   N:\_2021\1021275\CAD\DOCUMENTATION\REZONING\1021275_ REZONING.DWG

0 10.19.2021INITIAL ZONING
SUBMITTAL

49

Item 6.



COSTNER
SCHOOL ROAD

---

BESSEMER CITY, NC

REZONING #2021-XXX

1021242

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

N/A

XX
XX
XX

RZ-5
10/19/2021 10:13 AM   DAPHNE BRICE   Z:\TEMPLATES\SHEETS\CD SHEETS\LA\SHEET-24X36.DWT

0

            1"=200'

100' 200' 400'

KEY MAP

SEAL

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

LANDDESIGN PROJ.#

SCALE

PROJECT

NORTH

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

REVISION / ISSUANCE

ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 24" X 36"

VERT:
HORZ:

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
DESIGNED BY:

223 NORTH GRAHAM STREET
CHARLOTTE, NC 28202

704.333.0325
WWW.LANDDESIGN.COM

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

10/18/2021 4:45 PM   CASSIE SCHILLING   N:\_2021\1021275\CAD\DOCUMENTATION\REZONING\1021275_ REZONING.DWG

0 10.19.2021INITIAL ZONING
SUBMITTAL

Costner School Road

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

10/18/2021

I. General Provisions

1. These Development Standards form a part of  the Rezoning Plan associated with the Rezoning Petition filed by Lennar Corporation (the “Petitioner”) to accommodate the development of  a residential
community on that approximately 95.33-acre site located on the south-east side of  Costner School Road in Bessemer City, North Carolina, more particularly depicted on the Rezoning Plan (the
“Site”).  The Site is comprised of a portion of Tax Parcel Number 305559 and parcel 220086.

2. Development of the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan, these Development Standards and the applicable provisions of the Gaston County Development Ordinance (the “Ordinance”).

3. Unless the Rezoning Plan or these Development Standards establish more stringent standards, the regulations established under the Ordinance for the UR zoning district shall govern the development
and use of the Site.

4. The development depicted on the Rezoning Plan is schematic in nature and is intended to depict the general arrangement of  such uses and improvements on the Site.  Accordingly, the ultimate layout,
locations and sizes of  the development and site elements depicted on the Rezoning Plan are graphic representations of  the proposed development and site elements, and they may be altered or
modified in accordance with the setback, yard, landscaping and tree save requirements set forth on this Rezoning Plan and the Development Standards, provided, however, that any such alterations
and modifications shall not materially change the overall design intent depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

II.Permitted Uses

The Site may be devoted only to a residential community containing a maximum of two hundred (200) for-sale single-family residential units, and any incidental and accessory uses relating there to that
are allowed in the UR zoning district.

III. Transportation

1. All transportation improvements will be approved and constructed before the Site's first building certificate of occupancy is issued.

2. Access to the Site shall be provided as generally depicted in the Rezoning Plan.  The total number of access points along Costner School Road shall be limited to two (2) vehicular access point.

3. The Petitioner shall dedicate right-of-way for a future connection to the east of the Site for a future road connection.

IV. Architectural Standards

1. Preferred Exterior Building Materials: All principal and accessory buildings shall comprise of  a combination of  portions of  brick, natural stone (or its synthetic equivalent), stucco, cementitious
siding, fiber cement (“HardiPlank”) and/or other material approved by the Zoning Administrator.

2. Individual residential units shall be a minimum of 6,000 square feet.

V. Open Space & Amenities

1. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum of  nine and a half (9.5) acres of  open space (10% of  gross site acreage), to potentially include, but not be limited to, Playgrounds, Squares, Plazas and Parks, as
generally shown on the Rezoning Plan.

2. The Main Amenity Area will be approximately three (3) acres.

VI. Public Works

1. The sewer mains as well as service lines, meter boxes, fire hydrants, water services, and laterals shall not be in conflict with any proposed utility installations, landscaping, and/or driveways.

2. All sewer easements not in the road right of way must be in common open space to avoid structures being placed on sewer easements by the homeowners.

50

Item 6.



 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 92 AND 94 OF THE CITY OF 

BESSEMER CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

 

WHEREAS, after proper notification a Public Hearing was held before the Bessemer City Council on December 

13th, 2021 to consider a proposed amendment to the City of Bessemer City Code of Ordinances.  

 

WHEREAS, after a vote, the City Council of Bessemer City approved a text change to the    

City of Bessemer City Code of Ordinances reflected in Chapter 92 and 94 of the City of Bessemer City Code 

of Ordinances. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, that the City of 

Bessemer City Code of Ordinances is amended to reflect the adopted changes as written below. 

1. CHAPTER 92 ABANDONED, JUNK, NUISANCE VEHICLES. 

2. CHAPTER 94 NOISE. 

 

Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, 

North Carolina. 
 

Adopted by City Council this 13th Day of December, 2021. 
 

 

 

Becky S. Smith, Mayor 
 

Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
COBC-GOVBOD-2021-2022 O 24 

 

51

Item 8.



 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 3.2.B OF THE BESSEMER CITY   

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 

 

WHEREAS, after proper notification a Public Hearing was held before the Bessemer City Council on 

November 8th, 2021 to consider a proposed amendment to the Bessemer City, NC Land Development 

Code (LDC) Section 3.2.B Accessory Structures. On September 7th, 2021 the Bessemer City Planning 

Board voted to recommend      the City Council approve the proposed LDC text change. 

 

WHEREAS, after a vote, the City Council of Bessemer City approved a text change to 

the Bessemer City LDC proposed by text change request TA2021-0001. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, that 

Section 3.2.B of the Bessemer City, NC Land Development Code is amended to reflect the adopted 

changes as written below. 

 

BESSEMER CITY LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE – CHAPTER 3.2.B Accessory Structures 

3.2.B Accessory Structures 
Figure 0-1 Diagram of Accessory Structures 

 
 

52

Item 9.



 Unless otherwise specified, accessory structures shall be set back at least five (5) feet from the rear 

and side lot lines. 

 The accessory structure shall be clearly incidental to the primary use. Accessory structures shall 

not exceed the height, length, or the width of the principal structure on the lot. 

 With the exception of Section accessory structures must be located in the rear yard unless, upon 

the determination of the Zoning Administrator, no practical location exists. 

 Each lot shall be permitted up to three (3) accessory structures. 

 Lots that are one (1) acre or less shall only be permitted one (1) accessory structure that may be 

used for storage purposes. 

 A detached garage shall not be counted towards the one (1) permitted accessory structure used 

for storage purposes. 

 Lots greater than one (1) acre shall be permitted up to four (4) accessory structures. 

 The square footage of accessory structures must not exceed fifty (50) percent of the square 

footage of the primary structure on a lot. 

 Garage buildings, both attached and detached, shall be regulated as an accessory structure. 

 

 

Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, 

North Carolina. 
 

Adopted by City Council this 13th Day of December, 2021. 
 

 

 

Becky S. Smith, Mayor 
 

Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COBC-GOVBOD-2021-2022 O 25 

 
 

53

Item 9.



 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 3.3.F OF THE BESSEMER 

CITY  LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 

 

WHEREAS, after proper notification a Public Hearing was held before the Bessemer City Council on 

November 8th, 2021 to consider a proposed amendment to the Bessemer City, NC Land Development Code 

(LDC) Section 3.3.F Garages and Carports. On September 7th, 2021 the Bessemer City Planning Board voted to 

recommend      the City Council approve the proposed LDC text change. 

 

WHEREAS, after a vote, the City Council of Bessemer City approved a text change to the 

Bessemer City LDC proposed by text change request TA2021-0001. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, that Section 3.3.F 

of the Bessemer City, NC Land Development Code is amended to reflect the adopted changes as written below. 

 

BESSEMER CITY LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE  – CHAPTER 3.2.B Accessory Structures 

 

3.3.F Garages and Carports 

1.Garage doors are not permitted on the front elevation of any multi-family dwelling. 

2.Attached garages or garage buildings shall be located in the side or rear yard only. Attached garage 

buildings that front a public street shall be and recessed a minimum of six (6) feet from the front 

façade. 

3.Detached garages shall be located in the rear yard. Side yard detached garages are permitted if 

attached by a minimum six (6) foot wide covered breezeway to match principal roof structure. 

4.If a detached garage is located within the side yard, it shall not protrude beyond the frontage of 

the principal structure. 

5.Detached carports shall be located in the rear yard only. 

54

Item 9.



6. Carport roofs shall be either boxed eave or vertical style. 

 

7. Carports must be located on a paved surface or a contained gravel surface. 

8. Attached carports must match the roof of the principal structure. 

 

Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, 

North Carolina. 
 

Adopted by City Council this 13th Day of December, 2021. 
 

 

 

Becky S. Smith, Mayor 
 

              Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COBC-GOVBOD-2021-2022 O 26 
 

 

 

 
 

Figure 5-1 Example of Boxed Eave Style Carport 
Roof 

Figure 6-2 Example of Vertical Roof Style Carport 
Roof 

55

Item 9.



 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 10.1 OF THE BESSEMER CITY  

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 

 

WHEREAS, after proper notification a Public Hearing was held before the Bessemer City Council on 

November 8th, 2021 to consider a proposed amendment to the Bessemer City, NC Land Development Code 

(LDC) Section 10.1 General Definitions. On September 7th, 2021 the Bessemer City Planning Board voted to 

recommend      the City Council approve the proposed LDC text change. 

 

WHEREAS, after a vote, the City Council of Bessemer City approved a text change to the 

Bessemer City LDC proposed by text change request TA2021-0001. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, that Section 10.1 

of the Bessemer City, NC Land Development Code is amended to reflect the adopted changes as written below. 

 

BESSEMER CITY LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE –CHAPTER 10.1 General Definitions 

 

Structure, Accessory 

A structure clearly subordinate to the principal structure located on the same lot as the principal structure 

used for purposes customarily incidental to the principal structure. An accessory structure may also be 

referred to as an "accessory building." Accessory structures may be attached to or detached from the principal 

structure. 

 

 

Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, 

North Carolina. 
 

Adopted by City Council this 13th Day of December, 2021. 
 

 

 

Becky S. Smith, Mayor 
 

Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

 

COBC-GOVBOD-2021-2022 O 27 

 

 
56

Item 9.



0 
--------.. -·--- -, -:::..:..:--:--·�M fl. J. 0r----r-r 

1· ,. 

v t.� �� 

),:;\ 

/ 

' 

/ 

l 
I 

,f 

I 
I 
! 

/ 

Bushes

Dumpster 

Pad

HWY 161

HWY 161

Parking

57

Item 10.



 

City of Bessemer City, North Carolina 

Map Amendment Staff Report 

Planning Board Recommendation October 4, 2021 

 

Applicant:  Shiloh Canipe 

 

Request: 
 

Application General Rezoning 2021-0001 from Shiloh Canipe for Zoning Map Amendment to 

rezone 801 W. Hwy 161 Bessemer City, NC 28016 Tax Parcel #121181 and Parcel #121182, no 

assigned address, from Urban Residential to Highway Commercial.  

 

Background Information: 

 
801 W. Hwy 161 Bessemer City, NC 28016 Tax Parcel #121181 is currently zoned Urban 

Residential and the current use of the property is utilized as Office Space. The owner is 

requesting a zoning map amendment to rezone Parcel #121181 from Urban Residential (UR) to 

Highway Commercial (HC) to change use of principal structure from Office Space to 

Convenience Store. Currently, the use of Convenience Store is not allowed within the UR zoning 

district.  

 

Applicant is also requesting a zoning map amendment to rezone Tax Parcel #121182 from Urban 

Residential to Highway Commercial. Currently the parcel has no assigned address and is 

currently owned by the Heirs of Lizzie White C/O Sunny Alexander 18040 Midway Rd Apt. 

#167 Dallas, TX 75287. This specific property abuts the owner’s property to the rear.  

 

 

 

 

58

Item 10.



Urban Residential Dimensional Standards: 

 

Minimum Lot Area: 6,000 Square Feet 

Minimum Lot Width: 50 Feet 

Minimum Front Setback: 20 Feet 

Minimum Side Setback: 6 Feet 

Minimum Rear Setback: 30 Feet 

Minimum Corner Setback: 20 Feet 

Maximum Building Height: 45 Feet 

 

Urban Residential Uses: 

 

Permitted By Right (P) – Cultural/Community Center, Fire/Police Station, Government Service, 

Community Garden, Essential Services I, Park. 

 

Permitted with Additional Standards (AS) – Single Family Residential, Multifamily Residential, 

Bed and Breakfast, Family Care Home, Personal and Professional Services, Day Care, Religious 

Institution, Recreation and Sports Center Outdoor, Home Occupation, Accessory Cottage.  

 

Special Use Permit Required (SUP) – Restaurants and Eateries, Retail, Educational Facility, 

Essential Services II. 

 

Highway Commercial Dimensional Standards: 

 

Minimum Lot Area: 5,000 Square Feet 

Minimum Lot Width: 70 Feet 

Minimum Front Setback: 30 Feet 

Minimum Side Setback: 10 Feet 

Minimum Rear Setback: 20 Feet (30 Feet if abutting R, NR, UR districts) 

Minimum Corner Setback: 30 Feet 

Maximum Building Height: 50 Feet 

 

High Way Commercial Uses: 

 

Permitted By Right: Commercial II, Hotel/Inn, Micro-Brewery/Micro-Distillery, 

Personal/Professional Services, Restaurants/Eateries, Retail, Cultural/Community Center, Day 

Care, Fire/Police Station, Government Service, Essential Services I, Park, Recreation and Sports 

Center Indoor and Outdoor, Conference Center. 

 

Permitted with Additional Standards: Auto Services/Gasoline Station, Commercial III, Religious 

Institution, Farm Product Sales, Parking lot, Outdoor Storage, Drive-thru Facility.  

 

59

Item 10.



Special Use Permit Required (SUP) – Residential Care Facility, Adult Establishment, Arena 

Stadium, Educational Facility, Outdoor Storage Sales, Essential Services II, Transportation 

Facilities.  

 

The use of a convenience store is classified in the City of Bessemer City Land Development 

Code, Appendix A, Land Use Classification under Commercial III.  

 

The Land Development Code Chapter 10.2 Use Definitions defines Convenience Store as: “A 

one (1) story, retail store containing less than three thousand (3,000) square feet of gross floor 

area that is designed and stocked to sell primarily fuel, food (packaged and/or prepared), 

beverages, and other household supplies to customers who purchase relatively few items (in 

contrast to a “grocery store”). A “convenience store” is designed to attract and depends upon a 

large volume of stop-and-go-traffic.  

 

Staff Recommendations: 
 
Staff recommends rezoning parcels as a conditional district. Applicant has stated intentions of 

establishing a convenient store at the location. A conditional district would allow the applicant the 

opportunity to provide the surrounding area the economic benefits from a convenient store in the 

immediate area while preserving the integrity of the established neighborhood.  

 

Exhibits: 

 

A. Table of Uses 

B. Land Use Classification 

C. 10.2 Convenience Store Definition 

D. GIS location map. 

 

Recommended Effective Date: November 8, 2021 

60

Item 10.



 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE 

CITY OF BESSEMER CITY   

 

WHEREAS, after proper notification a Public Hearing was held before the Bessemer City Council on 

November 8th, 2021 to consider a proposed amendment to the City of Bessemer City Zoning Map. On October 

4th, 2021 the Bessemer City Planning Board voted to recommend      the City Council approve the proposed zoning 

map amendment. 

 

WHEREAS, after a vote, the City Council of Bessemer City approved a zoning map change 

to the    Official City of Bessemer City Zoning Map reflected in application ZA-2021-01. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, that the Official 

City of Bessemer City Zoning Map is amended to reflect the adopted changes as written below. 

 
 Tax Parcel #121181 is rezoned from Urban Residential (UR) to Highway Commercial (HC). 

 

 

Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, 

North Carolina. 
 

Adopted by City Council this 13th Day of December, 2021. 
 

 

 

Becky S. Smith, Mayor 
 

Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

 

 

COBC-GOVBOD-2021-2022 O 28 
 

 

 

 

 

 

61

Item 10.


	Top
	Item 2.	Approval of Minutes: Reg
	Bessemer City Regular Meeting Minutes November 8th 2021

	Item 3.	Minutes- Work Session
	City Council Work Session Minutes November 30th 2021

	Item 4.	accept Official Canvass
	Abstract Canvass - City of Bessemer City

	Item 6.	Rezoning Adoption-
	Rez 03-2021 Lennar Updated
	Rezoning Application
	ZA-03-2021 Ordinance
	2021.10.19_ Costner School Road - Rezoning

	Item 8.	Resolution Adopting Text Amendments
	TA-04-2021

	Item 9.	Resolution Adopting Text Amendments -
	TA2021-0001 Resolution 3.2.B
	TA2021-0001 Resolution 3.3.F
	TA2021-0001 Resolution 10.1

	Item 10.	Ordinance for Zoning Map Amendment
	808HWY161SitePlan
	Staff Analysis for 801 W. 161
	ZA-2021-01 Ordinance

	Bottom

